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4. RATIFICATION OF CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MR. VASANTHA SAI SAMA (DIN:
07126477) FROM THE POSITION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR TO WHOLE-TIME
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 203 and any other provisions as maybe applicable of the
Companies Act, 2013, the members be and hereby accord their consent for change in designation of
Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama (DIN: 07126477) from the position of Managing Director to Whole-Time
Director of the Company with effect from 07th October, 2022 whose office is not liable to retire by
rotation and is entitled to receive the remuneration per annum as mentioned below:

i) Basic Salary: 9,00,000
ii) HRA: 3,60,000
iii) Other allowances: 5,40,000

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds as may be necessary to bring into effect the above resolution.”

5. GIVING AUTHORISATION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO EXTEND ANY LOAN, OR
GIVE ANY GUARANTEE OR PROVIDE ANY SECURITY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY
LOAN TAKEN BY ANY PERSON IN WHOM ANY OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
ARE INTERESTED, INCLUDING THOSE LOANS/GUARANTEES ALREADY GIVEN OR
SECURITIES ALREADY PROVIDED:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s),the following resolution as
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sub-section 2 of Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and all other applicable provisions, if any, including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded
to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Board") which term shall
include any Commi�ee thereof/ or any director duly authorized in this respect by the Board) to
advance or any loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or
provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any person in whom any of the Director
of the company is interested including those loans/guarantees already given or securities already
provided, up to an amount of Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores Only), as and when
required.



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the said Loan, Guarantee or Security shall be given on such terms
and conditions as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem beneficial in the interest of the
Company, provided that amount shall be used exclusively for the purpose of principal business
activities of borrowing person.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to negotiate the terms and conditions and all other related ma�ers in connection
with above and finalize, se�le and execute such documents/deeds/papers as may be required and to
do all acts, deeds, ma�ers and things, it may in its absolute discretion deemed necessary, proper or
desirable and to se�le any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regards and also to
delegate all or any of the above powers to the Director(s) of the Company or any person nominated
by Directors and generally to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient
or incidental in this respect.”

6. RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MS SREEJA GURIJALA (DIN: 09507135) AS DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the appointment of Ms Sreeja Gurijala (DIN: 09507135), who has been
appointed as an Additional Director, and designated as Whole Time Director of the Company
under the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 16th February,
2022 and who is eligible to hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is
hereby ratified.



7. RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MR SAI KIRAN NALLAPANENI (DIN: 09507261) AS
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the appointment of Mr Sai Kiran Nallapaneni (DIN: 09507261), who has been
appointed as an Additional Director, and designated as Whole Time Director of the Company
under the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 16th February,
2022 and who is eligible to hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is
hereby ratified.

By Order of the Board
For ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Shubhi Singhal
Company Secretary

Membership No. : A66004

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03.12.2022



NOTES:

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, for maintaining social distancing norms and pursuant
to Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021 dated 8th April 2020, 13th April
2020, 5th May, 2020, 13th January, 2021, 8th December, 2021 and 14th December, 2021 followed by
Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permi�ed to hold the AGM through VC/OAVM, without
the physical presence of the members at a common venue. Accordingly, the 05th AGM of the company
will be convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with the provisions of Act, and Rules made
thereunder read with MCA circulars. The deemed venue for the 05th AGM shall be the registered
office of the company.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time), a Member entitled to
a�end and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to a�end and vote instead of himself/herself
and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC or
OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical a�endance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM
and hence the Proxy Form and a�endance slip is not annexed hereto. However, the Body Corporates
are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM and
participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. Corporate Members are encouraged to a�end the AGM through their Authorized Representatives.
They are requested to send by email a certified copy of the Board Resolution/ Power of A�orney
authorizing their representatives to a�end and vote on their behalf in the Meeting.

4. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time) and MCA
Circulars, the Company is providing facility of Remote e-Voting (e-Voting from a place other than
venue of the Meeting) and e-Voting during AGM, to its Members in respect of the businesses to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, necessary arrangements have been made by the Company
with NSDL to facilitate Remote e-Voting and e-Voting during AGM. The Members can join the AGM
in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting
and up till 15 minutes after the commencement of the Meeting. The instructions for the process to be
followed for Remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the AGM are forming part of this Notice.

6. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for
FY 2021-2022 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose name appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on benpos date i.e., 2nd
December, 2022 and whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. Members
may note that the Notice and Annual Report for FY 2021-2022 will also be available on the website of
the Company, i.e. h�ps://www.proyuga.tech and also available on the website of NSDL (Agency for
Providing Remote E-voting facility) i.e www.evoting.nsdl.com

https://www.proyuga.tech


7. The recorded transcript of the AGM which will be held on Thursday, the 29th Day of December, 2022
shall be maintained by the Company and also be made available on the website of the Company at the
earliest soon after the conclusion of the Meeting.

8. The Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, Registers and all other documents
will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same up to the date of
AGM, by sending an e-mail to the Company at company@proyuga.tech

9. The Company has appointed Mr. K Bhaskar as the Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the Remote e-voting
and E-voting process to ensure that the process is carried out in a fair and transparent manner.

10. The Member whose name appears on the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the cut off date i.e., 23rd December, 2022 will only be considered for the purpose of
Remote e-voting and E-voting.

11. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of Members /
Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e., 23rd December, 2022.

12. Pursuant to the Second Proviso of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of the
following preference shares with the following ISINs shall be entitled to a�end, participate, speak and
vote at the 05th Annual General Meeting of the Company:

S no ISIN No of shares allo�ed

1. INE495Y03143 65,00,000

2. INE495Y03127 8,65,27,000

3. INE495Y03135 32,73,000

*Note: Except the holders holding above mentioned shares, all the remaining classes of Preference
Shareholders if any shall treat this Notice for information purpose only and will not be entitled to
participate in the AGM.

11. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as
per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

12. The Members a�ending the AGM should note that those who are entitled to vote but have not
exercised their right to vote by Remote e-voting, may vote during the AGM through E-voting for all
businesses specified in the accompanying Notice. The Members who have exercised their right to vote by
Remote e-voting may a�end the AGM but shall not vote at the AGM.



13. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date i.e., 23rd December, 2022 should treat this
Notice for information purposes only.

14. The Members who still hold share certificate(s) in physical form are advised to dematerialize their
shareholding to avail the benefits of dematerialization, which include easy liquidity, since trading is
permi�ed in dematerialised form only, electronic transfer, savings in stamp duty and elimination of any
possibility of loss of documents and bad deliveries. Further, effective from April 01, 2019, requests for
effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are held in a dematerialized form
with a depository. Therefore, the Members who still hold share certificate(s) in physical form are advised to
dematerialize their shareholding at the earliest.

15. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

16. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice.

17. The deemed venue for 05th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company

18. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
se�ing out material facts in respect of the Special business is annexed hereto.

19. The requirement to place the ma�er relating to appointment of Statutory Auditors for ratification by
members at every Annual General Meeting is done away with vide notification dated May 7, 2018 issued
by MCA. Accordingly, no resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING BEFORE DAY OF AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

I. The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, the 26th day of December, 2022 at 09:00 A.M. and
ends on Wednesday, the 28th day of December, 2022 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do I vote electronically using the NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system



A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

Login Method

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for IDeAS Portal” or click at
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: h�ps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login
through their user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the
e-Voting is in progress.

Individual
Shareholders (holding
securities in demat
mode) login through
their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see the e-Voting
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to the e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com


Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining the virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open the web browser by typing the following URL:
h�ps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your
vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in a
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user
ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in
demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is
12************** then your user ID is
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.



b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force
you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the a�achment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgo�en your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu�on.

9. After you click on the “Login” bu�on, Home page of e-Voting will open.

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of the company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and cast your vote during the General Meeting. For joining the virtual meeting, you need to
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority le�er etc. with a�ested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to bhaskar.kadiyala@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful a�empts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com
or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to company@proyuga.tech.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
company@proyuga.tech. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode,
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for
e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is the same as the instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to a�end the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. Members will be provided with a facility to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see a link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under the
“Join General meeting” menu against the company name. You are requested to click on the
VC/OAVM link placed under the Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of the Company will be displayed. Please
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgo�en
the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for be�er experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use the Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
company@proyuga.tech. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number to company@proyuga.tech between 24
December,2022  (9.00 a.m. IST) and 26 December 2022 (5.00 p.m. IST).

7. Those Shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

REGARDING ITEM NO.3:

The Members are informed that the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Sai Teja
Manchukanti (DIN: 07596317) at its meeting held on 29.06.2022 as Additional Director of the Company.
According to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, he shall hold office as Additional
Director only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, his name has been proposed for appointment as Director of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Mr. Sai Teja Manchukanti has requisite knowledge and experience in the business and his involvement
would certainly benefit the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item
No. 3 of the Notice for Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Sai Teja Manchukanti as Non-Executive Director
of the Company.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except Mr. Sai Teja
Manchukanti and Sai Abhilash Manchukanti being his relative, are in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the
shareholders.

REGARDING ITEM NO.4:

The Members are informed that the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 07.10.2022
took note of the resignation tendered by Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama from the position of CEO & Managing
Director and further the Board approved his request for change in designation from the position of
Managing Director to Whole-Time Director of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item
No. 4 of the Notice for change in Designation of Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama as Managing Director to
Whole-Time Director of the Company.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except Mr. Vasantha Sai
Sama and Ms. Sreeja Gurijala, Mr. Sama Vijaya Kumar Reddy and Ms. Ganta Koteswaramma being his
relatives, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item
No. 4 of the Notice.



The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the
shareholders.

REGARDING ITEM NO.5:

The Members are hereby informed that pursuant to Companies Amendment Act, 2017, the Company is
now eligible to advance any loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or
provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any person in whom any of the directors of the
company is interested as and when required, subject to approval of the members by way of special
resolution.

The Board proposed to obtain the Members approval for an amount of Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty
Crores Only), for the purpose of providing Loans, giving Guarantees or Securities to the persons in which
the Directors are interested including those loans/guarantees already given or securities already provided.

Entire amount of Loans, Guarantees or Securities already provided to be given are exclusively used for
working capital requirements of the borrowing person.

The Directors therefore, recommend the Special Resolution for approval of the Members.

All the Directors are deemed to be interested in the above resolution to the extent of their shareholding and
directorship held in the above companies.

REGARDING ITEM NO.6:

The Members are informed that the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms Sreeja Gurijala
(DIN: 09507135) as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f 16th February, 2022.

According to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, she holds office as an Additional
Director only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, her appointment as such has to be ratified by the Members at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Hence, the Board of Directors recommended the resolution set out at item no 6.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except for Ms. Sreeja
Gurijala and Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama, Ms. Jyothi Gurijala being her relatives, are in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice.

Your Directors recommend the Resolution for your approval.



REGARDING ITEM NO.7:

The Members are informed that the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr Sai Kiran
Nallapaneni (DIN: 09507261) as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f 16th February, 2022.

According to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, she holds office as an Additional
Director only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General meeting of the Company. In accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, her appointment as such has to be ratified by the Members at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Hence, the Board of Directors recommended the resolution set out at item no 7.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except for Mr Sai Kiran
Nallapaneni and Mr. Suresh Nallapaneni, Ms. Syamala Devi Nallapaneni being his relatives, are in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

Your Directors recommend the Resolution for your approval.

By Order of the Board
For ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Sd/-

Shubhi Singhal
Company Secretary

Membership No.: A66004

Place:  Hyderabad
Date: 03.12.2022





2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

Standalone:

During the year under review, the Company has earned an income of Rs. 31,15,145.91/-* as against
the previous year’s income of Rs. 1,22,1985.84/-*. The expenditure incurred during the year
(excluding depreciation) was Rs. 56,75,973.14/-* as compared to the previous year’s amount of Rs.
8,14,989.96/-*.

*(Amount in Rupees Hundreds)

3. PROGRESS OF THE COMPANY:
ProYuga develops transformative products in Augmented Reality, Virtual Reality and Mixed Reality.
ProYuga has launched its first product iB Cricket in the presence of Shri Ram Nath Kovind, Hon'ble
President of India in 2018.

Cricket is the second most popular sport across the world. With more than 2.5 billion fans, the sport now
comes into virtual reality as a vSport with iB Cricket. As a new format of cricket and the world’s most
immersive virtual reality cricket, iB Cricket is bringing the ultimate experience of playing cricket in
world-class stadiums closer to all cricket lovers.

Built on cu�ing edge technology, iB Cricket presents a unique way of playing cricket in world-class
stadiums with advanced motion control technology, high-quality graphics and breathtaking visuals.
Anyone can play iB Cricket irrespective of age, gender, nationality or cricketing experience.

So far, people from 40+ nationalities have played 100 Million+ balls in iB Cricket. People right from 7
years to 87 years of age have enjoyed the game without any barriers. 98% of them said iB Cricket was
amazing.

In 2019, iB Cricket and Viu introduced iB Cricket Super Over League — the world’s first virtual reality
cricket league with 12 international cricket stars like Virender Sehwag, Brendon McCullum, Suresh
Raina, Andre Russell etc. competing in iB Cricket. With the uniqueness of the tournament, the viewership
has crossed 43 million views so far.

Continuing the success, the brand ‘iB Cricket’ has penetrated global markets through the worldwide
release of the iB Cricket game on Oculus and Steam. Ever since the release of the iB Cricket game on these
platforms, different tournaments have been conducted across the globe.

iB Cricket has two major editions — The ‘iB Cricket Home Edition’ and the ‘iB Cricket Business Edition’.
With the iB Cricket Home Edition, anyone can play in world-class stadiums right from their living room.
iB Cricket Home Edition has received tremendous response and achieved many milestones in FY 2021-22.



With iB Cricket Business Edition, the game can be used for commercial purposes. This edition captured a
lot of interest from existing gaming arcades, franchise businesses, cricket enthusiasts, etc. across the
globe.

iB Cricket Home Edition Received Tremendous Response Across the World

Since the launch of the much-awaited ‘iB Cricket Home Edition’, the number of gamers who started
playing iB Cricket has grown multifold. iB Cricket has achieved the milestone of more than 10,000 iB
Cricket Home Edition downloads within the first year of its launch. Gamers from various countries
across the globe have been consistently spending time playing iB Cricket every day.

In a noteworthy milestone in FY 2021-22, iB Cricket got listed in the Meta Main Store, one of the world’s
biggest stores for Virtual Reality apps. Being the most advanced VR cricket ever created, iB Cricket has
effortlessly cleared the rigorous quality check by Meta Main Store that lasted nearly 3 months.

Currently, iB Cricket custom-designed bats are available for sale only in India. Realizing the huge
business opportunity iB Cricket presents, many e-commerce sellers & entrepreneurs across the world
have approached the team to sell the iB Cricket custom-designed bat in their countries through them. The
team is also in talks with major e-commerce giants like Amazon to make the custom-designed bat
available across the world. In many instances, gamers who stay abroad have purchased iB Cricket bats
through their friends and families traveling to India.

The iB Cricket Gaming community has become much stronger. Many gamers in the community are
actively engaging in resolving queries of newcomers to the community and guiding them. This
community has been actively providing feedback/suggestions to the developers to constantly improve the
game.

Season Tournaments are being conducted. iB Cricket gamers from many countries across the world have
participated in the season tournaments and enjoyed the thrill of competitive vSports. With every season
tournament, the number of participants in the tournaments have been increasing multifold.

Considering the huge response, iB Cricket is planning to conduct tournaments at a larger scale, such as
World League and also increase the frequency of these tournaments. As the next step, vSport Clubs will
be established and this will lead to an explosive organic growth of the iB Cricket players community.

iB Cricket Business Edition Turns into a Lucrative Business Opportunity

iB Cricket has launched the iB Cricket Business Edition in the last quarter of FY 21-22. Looking at the
enormous business potential of the game, many individuals and business entities from across the globe
have requested to own the iB Cricket Business Edition. Many Interested leads from the MENAP and
North American regions have requested for master franchising and exclusive partnership rights of iB
Cricket for their respective countries and regions.



Strategic and Star-Studded Partnerships

Partnership with ‘83’ and ‘RRR’ Movies:

iB Cricket is the official VR Gaming Partner for 83 Movie, starring superstar Ranveer Singh as the
legendary cricketer Kapil Dev. The movie details the Indian cricket team's journey in the 1983 World
Cup. iB Cricket amplified the movie's promotions with 100+ activations in major cities and metros across
India.

iB Cricket team has developed a special edition game for 83 Movie by recreating the Lord's Stadium and
integrating the avatars and bowling action of Kapil Dev with Ranveer Singh. People from all age groups
who have participated in the tournaments were thrilled with the experience of playing this special
edition. In recognition of this innovative and unique marketing effort, 83 Movie has won the Best
Experiential Marketing Award at the World Trailer Awards 2022.

Also, as a part of the partnership with 83 Movie, Superstar Ranveer Singh has given a video byte
promoting the iB Cricket Business Edition. iB Cricket can leverage Ranveer’s video byte and generate a
large number of leads who would be interested in buying the iB Cricket Business Edition.

This year, iB Cricket has also partnered with India's biggest action drama, ‘RRR’ movie as the official VR
Gaming Partner and conducted activations across major cities in India. Participants who scored the
highest runs got a chance to win movie tickets for RRR Movie.

Partnerships with IPL teams of TATA IPL 2022

iB Cricket has partnered with three teams in TATA IPL 2022, the biggest T20 cricket league in the world.
iB Cricket is the Official VR Gaming Partner of Royal Challengers Bangalore, Kolkata Knight Riders and
Sunrisers Hyderabad.

As the Official VR Gaming Partner, the iB Cricket team has set up iB Cricket kits in the team rooms of
these IPL teams. Prominent players from all the teams have played iB Cricket. Players were so
mesmerized playing iB Cricket that our team received a few requests from players to buy an iB Cricket kit
for their personal use.

With these partnerships, iB Cricket secured the rights to use players' avatars inside the game. This has the
potential to take fan engagement to a whole new level because the cricket fans can now play iB Cricket
with avatars of international players from these three teams. In addition, tournaments and activations
conducted using this version of the game with avatars of cricketers can create huge brand awareness for
iB Cricket.

https://twitter.com/RelianceEnt/status/1499337795592396801
https://twitter.com/RelianceEnt/status/1499337795592396801


iB Cricket Carved a Niche for Itself in Brand Activations

iB Cricket has got huge penetration in the brand activation space and many brands, brand agencies from
different parts of the country are approaching iB Cricket for brand activations. The team is also in talks
with a couple of top retail chains for consumer electronics & home appliances in India for brand
activations. Seeing the potential of iB Cricket, the retail chain’s team is planning to buy a large number of
iB Cricket business edition kits, and conduct brand activations across their retail stores in India.

Future Plans and Prospects

● The iB Cricket team has been working on adding more exciting features to the game.

○ One of the features is Bowling in VR, that makes the game even more immersive. Along
with ba�ing, gamers will be able to bowl in Virtual Reality to their co-players in iB Cricket.

● iB Cricket plans to expand both the iB Cricket Home Edition and the iB Cricket Business Edition
kits to all the major cricket playing countries across the globe.

● In India, iB Cricket’s focus will be to aggressively scale the iB Cricket Business Edition across all
major states in the country.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Board has not recommended any dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021-2022.

5. CONSTITUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(“KMP”):

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KMP:

As on 31st March, 2022, the Board comprises of the following directors and Key Managerial Personnel:



S.
No

DIN Name of the Director Designation

1. 07126477 Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama Managing Director &
Chief Executive Officer

2. DASPS6584J Ms. Navya Surapaneni Chief Financial Officer
3. 06717315 Mr. Jaya Kiran Reddy Ambavarapu Independent Director
4. 08591597 Mr. Venugopal Rao Kancherla Independent Director
5. 07795458 Mr. Sriram G Teja Whole Time Director
6. 09507135 Ms. Sreeja Gurijala Whole Time Director
7. 09507261 Mr. Sai Kiran Nallapaneni Whole Time Director
8. 09507111 Mr. Parimi  Nekielesvvare Additional Director
9. BYEPP0251M Mr. Prince Pandey Company Secretary

During the year under review, the following changes took place in the constitution of the Board of
Directors of the Company:

● Ms Navya Surapaneni (PAN: DASPS6584J) was re-appointed as the CFO on 01.01.2022.
● Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama (DIN: 07126477) was appointed as the CEO & Managing Director

w.e.f 16.02.2022;
● Ms. Sreeja Gurijala (DIN: 09507135) and Mr. Sai Kiran Nallapeneni (DIN: 09507261) were

appointed as Additional Directors and Whole-Time Directors w.e.f 16.02.2022;
● Mr. Parimi Nekielesvvare was appointed as Additional Director (Non-Executive) on board

w.e.f. 16.02.2022;
● Mr. Trivikrama Reddy Kothinti (DIN: 07795482) tendered his resignation as Managing

Director & CEO w.e.f 16.02.2022;
● Ms. Spandana Rachamadugu (DIN: 07985809) and Ms. Reshika Reddy Ga�upally (DIN:

07987202) tendered their resignation from the position of Whole-Time Directors of the
Company w.e.f. 16.02.2022;

● Mr. Hari Haran Gorijavola (DIN: 06382576) tendered resignation from the position of
Non-Executive director of the Company w.e.f. 15.02.2022;

B. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Independent Directors of the Company as on 31.03.2022 are:

S.
No

DIN Name of the Director Designation

1 06717315 Jaya Kiran Reddy Ambavarapu Independent Director
2 08591597 Venugopala Rao Kancherla Independent Director

The statutory role of the Independent Directors Commi�ee is to review the performance of the
non-Independent Directors, including the Chairman of the Company, and the Board, and also to



assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 one meeting of the Independent Directors
Commi�ee was held on 26th March, 2022.

C. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.Vasantha Sai Sama
(DIN: 07126477), Whole Time Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

D. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The provisions relating to appointment of Key Managerial Personnel under Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are applicable to the Company.

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer:
Mr. Trivikrama Reddy Kothinti (DIN: 07795482) continued as Managing Director & CEO of the
Company during the financial year 2021-22 but tendered his resignation w.e.f. 16.06.2022.
Consequently, Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama, was appointed as.the Managing Director & CEO of the
Company  w.e.f. 16.02.2022.

.
However, Mr. Vasantha Sai Sama tendered resignation from the position of Managing Director &
CEO w.e.f. 07.10.2022. Thereafter, Mr. Sai Sasank S Ganesh Parimi was appointed as the CEO
w.e.f. 07.10.2022.

Chief Financial Officer:
As at the end of Financial Year 2021-22, Ms Navya Surapaneni, continued as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company.

However, Ms. Navya Surapaneni tendered her resignation from the position of Chief Financial
Officer w.e.f. 01.08.2022 and Mr. Karumuru Gowtham Reddy was appointed as the CFO w.e.f.
01.08.2022.

Wholetime Director:
During the period under review, Ms. Reshika Reddy Ga�upally (DIN: 07987202) and Mr.
Spandana Rachamadugu (DIN: 07985809) continued as Whole-Time Directors of the Company
but tendered their resignation from the position of Whole-Time Directors  w.e.f 16.02.2022.

Ms. Sreeja Gurijala, Mr Sriram G Teja and Mr. Sai Kiran Nallapaneni have been appointed as
Wholetime Directors of the Company w.e.f. 16.02.2022.



Whole-Time Company Secretary:
Mr. Prince Pandey was the Company Secretary (CS) of the Company as on 31st March 22.
However, Mr. Prince Pandey tendered his resignation on 31.08.2022 due to personal reasons.
The casual vacancy caused by the resignation was filled up by the Board in their meeting dated
12.09.2022 wherein the Board appointed Ms. Shubhi Singhal as Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f 12.09.2022.

6. PARTICULARS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES CONDUCTED
DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:

a. The Company has complied with the procedures relating to the Board Meetings.

b. The meetings are usually held at the Offices of the Company or at any other place within
India.

c. The draft Minutes are circulated to the Members of the Board for their comments and are
duly recorded in the concerned books.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(i) During the Financial Year 2021-2022, 10 (Ten) Board Meetings were held.

(ii) The Dates of the Board Meetings are:

S. No. Date of Meeting of
Board of Directors

Board
Strength

No. of Directors
present

1. 16-06-2021 8 7
2. 06-09-2021 8 5
3. 22-10-2021 8 5
4. 21-12-2021 8 5
5. 31-12-2021 8 5
6. 18-01-2022 8 4
7. 15-02-2022 7 5
8. 16-02-2022 5 3
9. 22-02-2022 7 4
10. 05-03-2022 7 5



(iii) The details of Directors, their a�endance at Board Meetings and the General Meetings of
the Company are given below:

S.
No.

Name of the
Director

Category Number
of Board
Meetings
entitled to

a�end

Number
of Board
Meetings
a�ended

Whether
present at

the
previous

AGM
held on

15.11.2021
1. Vasantha Sai

Sama
Managing Director

& CEO (w.e.f.
16.02.2022)

10 9 Yes

2. Sriram G Teja Wholetime
Director

10 10 Yes

3. Trivikrama
Reddy Kothinti

Managing Director
& CEO

7 7 Yes

4. Spandana
Rachamadugu

Wholetime
Director

7 1 Yes

5. Reshika Reddy
Ga�upally

Wholetime
Director

7 4 No

6. Hari Haran
Gorijavola

Non-Executive
Director

6 2 Yes

7. Jaya Kiran Reddy
Ambavarapu

Director
(Independent)

10 8 Yes

8. Venugopala Rao
Kancherla

Director
(Independent)

10 2 Yes

9. Parimi
Nekielesvvare

Additional
Director

3 2 No

10. Sai Kiran
Nallapaneni

Wholetime
Director

(w.e.f. 16.02.2022)

2 2 No

11. Sreeja Gurijala Wholetime
Director

(w.e.f. 16.02.2022)

2 1 No

(iv) Circular Resolutions: During the year, two circular resolutions have been passed on
09.08.2021 and 04.09.2021 respectively which have been recorded at the Board Meeting
held on 06.09.2021.



8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND THEIR MEETINGS:

Currently, there are four Commi�ees constituted by the Board. They are (a) the Audit Commi�ee,
(b) the Nomination & Remuneration Commi�ee, (c) the Independent Directors Commi�ee and d)
Stakeholders Relationship Commi�ee.

a) MEETINGS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Commi�ee presently comprises two Non-Executive Independent Directors and one
Executive Director. The Chairman of the Commi�ee is an Independent Director.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, two meetings of the Audit Commi�ee were
held on 22nd October, 2021 and 29th March 2022 and the particulars of a�endance of the said
meetings are as follows:

S. No. Name of the Director Category Designation Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
entitled to

a�end

Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
a�ended

Date of
Cessati
on (if
any)

1. Mr. Jaya Kiran
Reddy Ambavarapu

Independent
Director

Chairman 2 2 -

2. Mr. Kancherla
Venugopala Rao

Independent
Director

Member 2 2 -

3. Mr. Sai Kiran
Nallapaneni

Whole time
Director (w.e.f.

16.02.2022)

Member 1 1 -

4. Ms. Reshika Reddy
Ga�upally

Whole-Time
Director

Member 1 0 16.02.20
22

Due to resignation of Ms. Reshika Reddy Ga�upally w.e.f. 16.02.2022, the Audit Commi�ee has
been reconstituted w.e.f. 16.02.2022 as follows:

● Mr. Jaya Kiran Reddy Ambavarapu - Chairman
● Mr. Kancherla Venugopala Rao - Member
● Mr. Sai Kiran Nallapaneni - Member

b) MEETINGS OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Commi�ee as on 31st March ’22 comprises three
Non-Executive Directors out of which two are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the
Commi�ee is an Independent Director.

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, one meeting of the Nomination and



Remuneration Commi�ee was held on 14th March 2022 and the particulars of a�endance of the
said meeting is as follows:

S. No. Name of the Director Category Designation Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
entitled to

a�end

Number of
commi�ee
Meetings
a�ended

Date of
Cessati
on (if
any)

1. Mr. Jaya Kiran
Reddy Ambavarapu

Independent
Director

Chairman 1 1 -

2. Mr. Kancherla
Venugopala Rao

Independent
Director

Member 1 0 -

3. Mr. Parimi
Nekielesvvare

Non-
Executive
Director

Member 1 1 -

4. Mr. Hari Haran
Gorijavola

Whole-Time
Director

Member 0 0 15.02.20
22

Due to resignation of Mr. Hari Haran Gorijavola w.e.f. 15.02.2022, the Audit Commi�ee has been
reconstituted w.e.f. 16.02.2022 as follows:

● Mr. Jaya Kiran Reddy Ambavarapu - Chairman
● Mr. Kancherla Venugopala Rao - Member
● Mr. Parimi  Nekielesvvare - Member

c) MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE:

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, one meeting of the Independent Directors
Commi�ee was held on 26th March, 2022.

S. No. Name of the Director Designation Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
entitled to

a�end

Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
a�ended

1. Mr. Jaya Kiran Reddy
Ambavarapu

Chairman 1 1

2. Mr. Kancherla Venugopala
Rao

Member 1 1



d) MEETINGS OF STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, one meeting of the Stakeholders
Relationship Commi�ee was held on 22nd March 2022 and the particulars of a�endance of
the said meeting is as follows:

S.
No.

Name of the Director Category Designation Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
entitled to

a�end

Number of
Commi�ee
Meetings
a�ended

Date of
Cessation

(if any)

1. Mr. Jaya Kiran
Reddy Ambavarapu

Independent
Director

Chairman 1 1 -

2. Mr. Kancherla
Venugopala Rao

Independent
Director

Member 1 1 -

3. Mr. Sai Kiran
Nallapaneni

Whole time
Director

Member 1 1 -

4. Ms. Reshika Reddy
Ga�upally

Whole time
Director

Member 0 0 16.02.2022

Due to resignation of Ms. Reshika Reddy Ga�upally w.e.f. 16.02.2022, the Stakeholders
Relationship Commi�ee has been reconstituted w.e.f. 16.02.2022 as follows:

● Mr. Jaya Kiran Reddy Ambavarapu - Chairman
● Mr. Kancherla Venugopala Rao - Member
● Mr. Sai Kiran Nallapaneni - Member

9. ANNUAL RETURN:

As required under Clause (a) to Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual
Return in Form MGT-7 as provided under Sub-Section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 is placed on the website of the Company i.e h�ps://proyuga.tech/investor-relations.

10.        DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its Responsibility Statement:—

(a) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the
profit and loss of the Company for that period;

https://proyuga.tech/investor-relations


(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
Accounting Records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a Going Concern basis; and

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS
OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR
REPORTS UNDER SUB-SECTION 3(f) OF SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT’2013:

a. The observations of the Statutory Auditor in its reports on standalone and consolidated financials
are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

b. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Secretarial Auditors in their
Report.

12. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE
WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the
Company.

13. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

The Provisions of Section 178(1) relating to Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Commi�ee are applicable to the Company and hence the Company has devised a policy relating
to appointment of Directors, Payment of Managerial Remuneration, Directors Qualifications,
positive a�ributes, independency of Directors and other related ma�ers as provided under Section
178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Disclosure on details of loans, guarantees and investments during the year under review pursuant
to the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are provided in the financial statements.



15. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188 IN THE PRESCRIBED FORM:

There were no related party transactions entered into by the company during the financial year,
which a�racted the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. All the transactions
with the related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis and the
same have been disclosed in the financial statements and in the Form AOC-2 marked as Annexure
II.

16. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS UNDER SUB-SECTION 3(i) OF SECTION 134 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT’ 2013:

A) BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY WORKING DURING THE YEAR AND
PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

During the year under review the Company was engaged in the business to develop, trade,
own, run, manage, carry on research and development of products in advanced technologies
and such other objects as mentioned in the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

B) CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There are no changes in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year
2021-2022

C) SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY:

After the closure of the financial year, a Special resolution for shifting of the Registered office
of the Company from Mumbai, Maharashtra State to Hyderabad, Telangana State has been
passed at the EGM held on 20.08.2022 and an application has been filed in Form INC-23 to the
Regional Director, Western Region. Pursuant to this, the Company has received the Order
copy from the Regional Director on 25.11.2022 and the Company has filed the order copy in
Form INC-28 which is yet to be approved by the ROC. So, your Company is awaiting the
confirmation of shifting by the ROC and issue of Certificate for shifting of Registered office
from Mumbai, Maharashtra State to Hyderabad, Telangana State.

17. THE AMOUNTS, IF ANY, WHICH IT PROPOSES TO, CARRY TO ANY RESERVES UNDER
SUB-SECTION 3(j) OF SECTION 134 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

No specific reserve is considered necessary except the proposed transfer of the loss to the General
Reserve as mentioned in the Financial Statements.



18. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

19. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years.
Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

20. DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

21. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the Financial Year to which this Financial Statement relates on the date of this
Report.

22. SUBSIDIARIES, JOIN VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Joint Venture or Associate Companies but has 2 Subsidiary
Companies namely Mayuukha Pte Ltd, Singapore and XR Technologies Limited, Gurgaon,
Haryana, India. The particulars of the subsidiary have been given in the Form AOC-1 marked as
Annexure -I.

23. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO, IN SUCH MANNER AS MAY BE PRESCRIBED UNDER
SUB-SECTION 3(m) OF SECTION 134 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption are
provided as under:



A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Conservation of energy:
The Board has been constantly endeavoring towards conservation of power and other rare
resources.

Technology Absorption:
The Company has access to and strived for technology absorption wherever applicable. The
Board has been constantly endeavoring for implementation of advanced technologies.

B. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS /OUTGO:

In accordance with the provisions of 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies’
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the information relating to Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is
provided as under:

Particulars F.Y 2021-22
Rs.(In hundreds)

F.Y 2020-21
Rs.(In Hundreds)

Foreign Exchange Earnings in (Rs.) 2,21,928.85 11,578.31
Foreign Exchange Outgo 73,007.00 13,820.10

24. DISCLOSURES:

1. The Company has noted the related disclosures relating to the affairs of the company from
time to time and also maintained the related Registers.

2. The Company has complied with all applicable Accounting Standards in preparation of its
financial statements.

25. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) AND REAPPOINTMENT, IF ANY

All the Independent Directors have submi�ed their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, so as to qualify
themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the relevant rules thereof. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the condition for
appointment/ re-appointment as Independent Directors on the Board. Further, in the opinion of
the Board, the Independent Directors also possess the a�ributes of integrity, expertise and
experience as required to be disclosed under Rule 8(5)(iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.



26. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There are no significant and material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the Going Concern status and Company’s operations in future.

27. EMPLOYEE RELATIONS:

Employee relations are cordial at all levels. The company has been doing recruitment of required
personnel from time to time.

28. AUDITORS:

(a) STATUTORY AUDITORS:

At the Second Annual General Meeting held on 31.12.2019, M/S NRG & CO, CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS, HYDERABAD (FRN: 013417S) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office for 5 years till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be
held in the calendar year 2024.

As, ratification of appointment of Auditors at every Annual General Meeting is done away
with vide notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by MCA. Accordingly, no resolution shall be
proposed for ratification of appointment of Auditors.

In this regard, the Company has received a Certificate from the Auditors to the effect that if
they are reappointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

M/S NRG & CO, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, HYDERABAD (FRN: 013417S) are
continuing as the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2022-2023.

(b) Internal Auditors:

The provisions of section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of Company (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has appointed M/s.
Nanduri & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Visakhapatnam, as Internal Auditors of the
company for the Financial Year 2021-2022.

As the Board is satisfied with the performance of these Auditors, the Board appointed them as
Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 also at their meeting held on 28.05.2022. These
Auditors report directly to the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.



(c) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

M/s. ASN Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Visakhapatnam has been appointed to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-2022, as required
under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit
Report for the Financial Year 2021-2022 forms part of the Annual Report to the Board's report.

29. SHARE CAPITAL:

a. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 175,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred
and Seventy Five Crores Only) as on 31.03.2022.

b. ISSUED AND PAID UP CAPITAL:

The Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is INR 100,83,55,027/- (Rupees One
Hundred Crores Eighty Three Lakhs Fifty Five Thousand Twenty Seven Only) as on 31.03.2022.

c. ISSUE OF SHARES:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares.

d. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES:

The Company has not bought back any of its Securities during the year under review.

e. SWEAT EQUITY:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

f. BONUS SHARES:

No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

g. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the Employees.

h. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential Rights during the year.



i. PROVISION OF MONEY BY COMPANY FOR PURCHASE OF ITS OWN SHARES BY
EMPLOYEES OR BY TRUSTEES FOR THE BENEFIT OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company has not provided any money for purchase of own Shares, by Employees or by
Trustees for the benefits of Employees.

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The disclosure required under Section 197 of the Act read with the Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed as
Annexure-III and form an integral part of this report. A statement comprising the names of top 10
employees in terms of remuneration drawn and every person is employed throughout the year,
who were in receipt of remuneration in terms of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure-III .

The above annexure is not being sent along with this annual report to the members of the
Company in line with the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. Members who are interested in
obtaining these particulars may write to the Company Secretary/CFO, up to the date of the
ensuing Annual General meeting during the business hours on working days.

31. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has maintained adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, has appropriate accounting policies, maintained adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements of the Company

32. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE (n) TO
SUB-SECTION (3) of SECTION 134:

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company’s existence are very minimal. However, all the risks are discussed in the Board meeting
whenever required and care being taken accordingly.



33. DISCOLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in premises and always endeavors to create and provide an environment that
is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

During the year ended 31 March, 2022, the Company has not received any complaint pertaining to
sexual harassment.

34. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR
UNDER CLAUSE (o) TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 135 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company is not falling under the category to spend the amount under the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) under the Companies Act, 2013.

35. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sub-section (9) & (10) of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, a
Vigil Mechanism Policy for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns has been
established. During the current year the Company hasn't received any complaint regarding the
victimization of Employees and Directors.

36. CORPORATE AFFAIRS:

The Company has been continuing the best practices of Corporate Governance for ensuring
Protection of the rights and interests of its Stakeholders, Customers and Persons dealing with the
Company with cautious approach towards in operations, rendering services efficiently and
effectively to the Customers and complying with the various Statutory provisions and submi�ing
the required information to the concerned authorities relating to the business affairs of the
Company from time to time.

37. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company has complied with the
applicable provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI).



38. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS:

The Board has been continuing its efforts and has taken the required steps in the areas of Industry
structure and Development, Growth Strategy, Financial Performance, Operational Performance,
Leadership Development, Talent Retention, Learning and Development.

39. ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY:

Your Company has been continuing all its activities with requisite measures to protect the
environment.

40. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

The Companies Act, 2013 contains provisions for the evaluation of the performance of:
(i) the Board as a whole,
(ii) the individual directors (including independent directors and Chairperson) and
(iii) various Commi�ees of the Board.

The Company with the approval of its Nomination and Remuneration Commi�ee, has put in
place an evaluation framework for evaluation of the Board, Directors and Chairman pursuant to
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the Company is required to disclose the
manner of formal annual evaluation. The Board also carries out an evaluation of the workings of
its Audit Commi�ee, Nomination & Remuneration Commi�ee and Stakeholders Relationship
Commi�ee. The evaluation of the above Commi�ees is based on the assessment of the compliance
with the terms of reference of the respective Commi�ees. The evaluation of the Directors was
based on their participation, contributions and guidance provided by them.

41. INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the Financial Year 2021-22.

42. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

As the Company has not done any one time se�lement during the year under review hence no
disclosure is required.





Annexure - I
FORM NO. AOC.1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rupees Hundreds)

1. Sl. No 1 2
2. Name of the subsidiary Mayuukha Pte Ltd XR Technologies

Limited
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary

concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period

NA NA

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as
on the last date of the relevant financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

USD INR

5. Share capital 3,46,862.97 25,000.00
6. Reserves & surplus (35,17,367.57) (20,616.55)
7. Total assets 27,84,99.37 5,146.81
8. Total Liabilities 2,78,499.37 5,146.81
9. Investments - (Note 4) -
10. Turnover - -
11. Profit/(Loss) before taxation (21,07,685.10) 1,552.90
12. Provision for taxation 9,937.15 7.7
13. Profit/(Loss) after taxation (20,97,747.95) 1,545.20
14. Proposed Dividend - -
15. % of shareholding 87.42% 99.76%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL
3. Conversion rates from USD to INR, as on 31.03.2022 - 75.8071 & Average rate for FY

21-22 is 74.62005
4. Mayuukha Pte Ltd has invested in subsidiaries. However, considering the accounting

policies applicable, Mayuukha Pte Ltd has created a provision for the same in the books of
accounts. Mayuukha Pte Ltd shall review the provision on yearly basis and reverse the same
whenever there is a change in the scenario.



Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end
No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture
Extend of Holding %



Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
3. Description of how there is significant
influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation
i. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be
certified.

By Order of the Board
For ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Vasantha Sai Sama

DIN: 07126477
Whole time Director

Sd/-
Date: 03-12-2022 Sriram G Teja
Place: Hyderabad                                                                                                      DIN: 07795458

Whole time Director



ANNEXURE II
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of Contracts/Arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in
Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain Arms Length Transaction under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

S. No. Particulars Details

a) Name (s) of the Related Party & nature of relationship --

b) Nature of Contracts/Arrangements/Transaction --

c) Duration of the Contracts/Arrangements/Transaction ---

d) Salient terms of the Contracts or Arrangements or Transaction including the value, if any --

e) Justification for entering into such Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions’ --

f) Date of approval by the Board --

g) Amount paid as advances, if any --

h) Date on which the Special Resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

--



2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.
No.

Name (s) of the
Related Party &
nature of relationship

Nature of Contracts/
Arrangements/ Transaction

Salient terms of the Contracts or
Arrangements or Transaction
including the value, if any

Date of approval
by the Board

Amount paid as
advances, if any

1. RENTIAN PRIVATE
LIMITED*

Advances  received Advances received for purchase of
property

01.11.2019 Rs.
(1,766,000.00)**

2. RENTIAN PRIVATE
LIMITED*

Rent received Rent received for leasing out office
space to Rentian Private Ltd during
FY 21-22 amounting to Rs 1800.00**

01.11.2019 -

*ProYuga’s director Mr. Sriram G Teja is a relative of Mr. Vishnu Sriram Gurumurthy, Rentian’s Director and there is a Common Director in both
Companies, Mr. Hari Haran Gorijavola till 15.02.2022.
** in Rupees Hundreds

By Order of the Board
For ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Sd/-
Vasantha Sai Sama

DIN: 07126477
Whole time Director

Sd/-
Date: 03-12-2022 Sriram G Teja
Place: Hyderabad DIN: 07795458

Whole time Director



KUCHIPUDI SURENDRA ASN ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARY COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ph. No: 2529246
Fax : 0891-2712695
Cell : 96400 56555, 77994 35494
Email: asn@asnassociates.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited
1609 Lodha Supremus Powai,
Saki Vihar Road Oppo Mtnl Office, Powai,
Mumbai – 400072, Maharashtra, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit regarding compliance of applicable Statutory Provisions and
the adherence to Good Corporate Practices by ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited (CIN:
U74999MH2017PLC296222) (here-in-after called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate Conducts/Statutory
Compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents
and Authorized Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022, the Company
has complied with the Statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has adopted
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent as mentioned, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by “ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited” for the Financial Year ended on 31st
March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i)   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings to the extent applicable to the Company;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-Laws framed there under;
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(iv) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management.

We are of the opinion that the Management has complied with the following Laws wherever
applicable to the Company:

(a) The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under;
(b) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under;
(c) Shops & Establishments Act (Bombay Shops & Establishments Act, 1948);
(d) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936;
(e) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
(f) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
(g) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
(h) The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972;
(i) The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1 923;
(j) The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948
(k) Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;
(l) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;
(m) The Employment Exchanges ( Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) A ct, 1959;
(n) The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the Rules made thereunder;
(o) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
(p) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act,

2013

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Directors. The
changes in the constitution of the Board which took place during the year under review are in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and
detailed notes on Agenda were sent, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the Agenda Items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

3. All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through with requisite
majority.
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4. Adequate systems and processes are in place in the Company which is commensurate with its
size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanisms formed by the Company for Compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

For ASN Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
(Surendra Kuchipudi)
ACS No.34205
C P No.:12732

UDIN: A034205D002601431

Place: Visakhapatnam
Date: 03.12.2022

*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ’Annexure A’ and forms an
integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE A

To,
The Members,
ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited
1609 Lodha Supremus Powai,
Saki Vihar Road Oppo Mtnl Office, Powai,
Mumbai – 400072, Maharashtra, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification
was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial Records. We
believe that the processes and practices we followed for this purpose provided a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial law like Direct and Indirect Tax Laws
and maintaining of financial Records and Books of Accounts have not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Audit and other
designated Professionals.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on a test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For ASN Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
(Surendra Kuchipudi)
ACS No.34205
C P No.:12732

UDIN: A034205D002601431
Place: Visakhapatnam
Date: 03.12.2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
M/s. ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. ProYuga
Advanced Technologies Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw your attention to note II.(xii) to the standalone financial statements; the company
has long-term investments in foreign subsidiaries as an equity and Loans. The subsidiaries
incurring continued losses, due to which there was a decline in the value of investment. The
Management has considered the decline in the value of investment and accordingly made a
provision for diminution in the value of investment for Rs. 35,60,936.66 ( In “Hundreds”) as
mentioned in notes to standalone financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of  these matters.
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Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s Report but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and the Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the operating effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatement in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure- A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the statement of cash flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure-B”, and

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion, according to the information and explanation give
to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the current year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid
to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would
impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Company, or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
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Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the
year.

For N R G & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 013417S

sd/-

CA. P Ramakrishna
Partner
Membership No. 512328
UDIN: 22512328BEVMAG8063

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  31.10.2022
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of M/s. ProYuga Advanced

Technologies Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course

of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) As per information provided before us, the fixed assets were physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed

(c) We have inspected the copies of title deeds of immovable properties of the company
disclosed in the financial statements of the company and held as Property, Plant and
Equipment. We have received third party confirmation in respect of title deeds of
immovable properties of the company, which are in custody of third parties such as
mortgages. Based on our audit procedures and information and explanations given to
us we report that all title deeds of immovable properties of the company disclosed in
the financial statements of the company and held as a property, plant and equipment
in the name of the company However, we express no opinion on the validity of title of
the company to these properties.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii.

(a) As per information provided to us and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, the management at reasonable intervals has conducted the physical
verification of inventory. No material discrepancies have been noticed on
physical verification of inventories as compared to book records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits at any point
of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.
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iii. The Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year except as
mentioned below. The company has granted loans to One Subsidiary Company and
other 4 companies during the year, details of the loan is stated in sub-clause (A) below.
The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties’ during the year.

A. The Company has granted loans to subsidiaries as below

Particulars Amount in “Hundreds”

Aggregate amount
during the year

3,82,450.00

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet
date

0*

*Total Loan Receivable as on 31.3.2022 Rs. 32, 83,201.00/-(In
“Hundreds”) However the company has made a provision as referred
in II.(xii) of notes to financial statements on conservative basis.

B. The Company has granted loans to other than subsidiaries, Joint ventures and
associates as below

Particulars Amount in “Hundreds”

Aggregate amount
during the year

15,88,300.00

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet
date

25,62,554.62

(a) We are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans given are prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(b) We are of the opinion that the repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
in accordance with the terms of loan agreements.

(c) There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.

(d) There is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans given to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same
party.

(e) The Company has given loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

Page 8 of 14



iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable. There were no loans granted during the year
under section 185 of Act. The company has waived off interest for the year on
outstanding loan of Mayuukha Pte. Ltd, Singapore. (A subsidiary company of
ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited as on 31.3.2022).

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts, which are deemed deposits
hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings,
payment of interest to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is  not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that the company has used no funds raised on a short- term basis for long-term
purposes.

(e) Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is  not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
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held in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and hence
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares
(fully, partly, or optionally) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this
report.

(c) The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints, hence reporting on
clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii. The Company has transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act, and where applicable and details have been disclosed in the
Standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standard.

xiv. (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date for
the period under audit..

xv. In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
reporting under clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
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Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d)
of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

xx. In our opinion the provisions of section 135 of the companies act 2013 with regard to
corporate social responsibility are not applicable to the company hence clause 3 (xx) of
the Order is not applicable.

For N R G & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 013417S

sd/-

CA. P Ramakrishna
Partner
Membership No. 512328
UDIN:22512328BEVMAG8063

Place: Hyderabad
Date:  31.10.2022

Page 11 of 14



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the standalone financial
statements.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting  under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. ProYuga
Advanced Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Director’s is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting , assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls  over financial reporting

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systems
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For N R G & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 013417S

sd/-

CA. P. Ramakrishna
Partner
Membership No. 512328
UDIN:22512328BEVMAG8063

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 31.10.2022
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sĂƐĂŶƚŚĂ�^Ăŝ�^ĂŵĂ���������������
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EĂǀǇĂ�^ƵƌĂƉĂŶĞŶŝ���������������������� �ŚŝĞĨ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�KĸĐĞƌ
WƌŝŶĐĞ�WĂŶĚĞǇ �ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�^ĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ

Ύ�ZĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ǁ͘Ğ͘Ĩ�ϭϲ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϮϮ
ΎΎ�ZĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ǁ͘Ğ͘Ĩ�ϭϱ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϮϮ
ΎΎΎ��ƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ǁ͘Ğ͘Ĩ�ϭϲ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϮϮ
ΎΎΎΎ��ŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƟŽŶ�ǁ͘Ğ͘Ĩ�ϭϲ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϮϮ

^ĂŵĂ�sŝũĂǇĂ�<ƵŵĂƌ�ZĞĚĚǇ

ZĞŶƟĂŶ�WƌŝǀĂƚĞ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ
,Ǉ^ƉŽƌƚƐ�>>W

tŚŽůĞ�dŝŵĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌΎΎΎΎ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
M/s. ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of  Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. ProYuga
Advanced Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”)
which comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated  financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of Reports of other Auditors on separate financial statements of
a subsidiaries as were audited by the other Auditors and financial statements given by
management of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, and it’s
consolidated loss and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended..

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of companies the Act 2013 (the
Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us
along with the consideration of audit reports of the other Auditors and financial information
certified by the management referred in “other matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.



Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of  assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of  our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this Auditors Report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit or loss and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with rules,
as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the each company to



continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of  the each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of  the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of  internal control.

● Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, under
section 143 (3) (i) of the act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion,
on whether the holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
India has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of  such controls.

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and board
of  directors.

● Conclude on the appropriateness of management and board of director’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt



on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

● Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial information of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our
responsibilities in this regards are further described in “other matters” paragraph
in this audit report.

● Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the consolidated financial
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and
such other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



Other Matters

a) The subsidiaries are located outside India and whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries and the Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of the subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments
made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances
and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on Report of other
Auditors and the financial information certified by the management and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of  the Company and audited by us.

b) We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of subsidiaries located
outside India, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of
Rs.2,83,789.21 (In Hundreds) as at March 31, 2022 and total revenues/income of
Rs.53,639.83/-(In Hundreds) as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements/ financial information have been audited by others auditors
and financial statements/information certified by Management in case of Un Audited as
on the date of issue of our Audit Report and whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such reports of the other auditors and
information given by the management.

c) We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of Indian subsidiary
whose financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 5146.81 ( In
Hundreds) as at March 31, 2022 and total income of Rs. 6611.60 ( In Hundreds), and
expenditure of Rs. 5058.70/-(In Hundreds) and net cash inflows/(outflow) amounting
to Rs(12477.47)( In Hundreds) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
share of net profit/(loss) of Rs. 1541.49( In Hundreds)/- for the year ended March 31,
2022, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements/
financial information have not been audited by us. These financial statements/ financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary and
our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of  the other auditors



d) We draw your attention to Note 14, 15 of the consolidated financial statements of the
company; the company has made an allowance of Rs. 20,39,686.83 (In Hundreds) for
doubtful debts in the foreign subsidiary.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors and the financial statements /
financial information certified by the Management of  the Holding company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of  the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated  financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and report of the other auditors and Reports given by the
by the management

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of  the Act read Rules, as amended

(e) On the basis of the written representations from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, which are
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary
company, which are incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of  Section 164(2) of  the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of Internal Financial Controls over financial statement of
the Holding company and its subsidiary company, which are incorporated in India and
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-A to
this report.



(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of  the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India to its directors is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid
to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India are not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197
of  the Act as amended.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of  a subsidiary, as noted in the “other matters” paragraph.

i. There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of  the Group.

ii. The Holding company and its subsidiary company, which are incorporated in India,
did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, which are incorporated in India.

iv. a) The respective managements of the company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have audited under
the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of
such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such subsidiaries, (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The respective managements of the company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have audited under
the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no



funds ( which are material either individually or in the aggregate ) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company or any of such subsidiaries
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the company and its
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), has provided (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports provided to us for its subsidiaries incorporated in India included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in
the CARO reports.

For N R G & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 013417S

CA. P Ramakrishna
Partner
Membership No. 512328
UDIN: 22512328BEVMXI3765

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03.12.2022



Annexure – A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the consolidated financial
statements.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of  our report to the membersProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited of  even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over  financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of  Section
143 of  the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and
for the year ended March 31,2022 we have audited the Internal financial controls over financial
reporting of M/s. ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited (“the Holding Company”) and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of  that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of directors of holding company and subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the Internal Control over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of  reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and its subsidiaries companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the



extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was
established and maintained and if  such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their report referred to other matter paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting of the company and it subsidiaries companies which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of  Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting.

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting
including the possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over the financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2022, based on the criteria for internal financial controls over financial reporting established by
the such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of  Chartered Accountants of  India.

Other Matter

Our report under section 143 (3) (i) of the act on the adequacy and operative effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the holding company and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India. We have not expressed any opinion on
internal financial controls over financial reporting of  subsidiaries located outside India

For N R G & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 013417S

sd/-
CA. P Ramakrishna
Partner
Membership No. 512328
UDIN: 22512328BEVMXI3765

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03.12.2022
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]Zd<[s�P<h�/Q[O<d]gI�/kDhQGQ<gs�[<ZIG�!<skkXP<�+jI� jG��0PI�
]Zd<[s�q<h�Q[E]gd]g<jIG�][�ÆjP��IDgk<gs��ÃÁÂÉ��0PI�
][h]YQG<jIG�NQ[<[EQ<Y
hj<jIZI[jh�<gI�dgId<gIG�E][hQGIgQ[O�jPI��EE]k[jQ[O�dgQ[EQdYIh�hj<jIG�Q[��/�ÂÂ�<[G��/�ÃÂ
0PI�
]Zd<[s�P<h��[GQ<[�/kDQhQG<gs�[<ZI�8.�0IEP[]Y]OQIh� QZQjIG��0PI�
]Zd<[s�q<h�Q[E]gd]g<jIG�][�ÃÁjP�!<gEP��ÃÁÂÊ��0PI�
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�WƌŽzƵŐĂ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�
�ϭϲϬϵ͕�>ŽĚŚĂ�^ƵƉƌĞŵƵƐ͕�^ĂŬŝ�sŝŚĂƌ�ZŽĂĚ͕�KƉƉ͘�DdE>�ŽĸĐĞ͕�WŽǁĂŝ͕�DƵŵďĂŝͲϰϬϬϬϳϮ

EŽƚĞƐ�&ŽƌŵŝŶŐ�WĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ

ϭ ^ŚĂƌĞ��ĂƉŝƚĂů ;�ŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�,ƵŶĚƌĞĚƐͿ

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ
�Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ
�Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ
EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ZƐ͘ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ZƐ͘

�;�Ϳ� �ƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĞĚ�͗

WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ��ůĂƐƐĞƐ

dŽƚĂů Ϯϳϴ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭϳ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ Ϯϳϴ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭϳ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ

�;�Ϳ /ƐƐƵĞĚ͕�^ƵďƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�&ƵůůǇ�WĂŝĚ�ƵƉ�͗

dŽƚĂů ϭϰϭ͕ϲϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϭϬ͕Ϭϴϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ ϭϰϭ͕ϲϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϭϬ͕Ϭϴϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ

ϭ͘�ZŝŐŚƚƐ͕�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂƩĂĐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ

Ϯ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ

EĂŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌ
�Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ
�Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ
EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ZƐ͘ϭͬͲ�ĞĂĐŚ ϭϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϭϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ

WƌĞĨĞƌŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ZƐ�ϭͬͲ�ĞĂĐŚ ϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϮϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ
WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ZƐ�ϭϬͬͲ�ĞĂĐŚ ϭϱϴ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭϱ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϭϱϴ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭϱ͕ϴϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ
WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ZƐ�ϭϬϬͬͲ�ĞĂĐŚ ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ

&ƵůůǇ�WĂŝĚ�ƵƉ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů��ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ZƐ͘ϭͬͲ��ĂĐŚ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ
&ƵůůǇ�WĂŝĚ�ƵƉ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ŽĨ�ZƐ�ϭϬͬͲ��ĂĐŚ
Ϭ͘Ϯй�EŽŶ��ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ
Ϭ͘ϬϮй�EŽŶ��ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ZĞĚĞĞŵĂďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ
Ϭ͘ϬϮй�EŽŶͲ�ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ

dŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ŚĂƐ�ŽŶůǇ�ŽŶĞ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ŽĨ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉĂƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ZƐ͘ϭͬͲ�ĞĂĐŚ͘���ĂĐŚ�ŚŽůĚĞƌ�ŽĨ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĞŶƟƚůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ǀŽƚĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞ
ŽŶ�ƉŽůů�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŽŶĞ�ǀŽƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƐŚŽǁ�ŽĨ�ŚĂŶĚƐ͘

/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ůŝƋƵŝĚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ͕ �ƚŚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞŶƟƚůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ͕ �ĂŌĞƌ
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶƟĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��Đƚ͕�ŝĨ�ĂŶǇ͕ �ŝŶ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ
ƐŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ͘

^ĂŵĂ�sŝũĂǇĂ�<ƵŵĂƌ�ZĞĚĚǇ ϯϴ͕ϯϯϰ͕ϬϱϮ ϴϰ͘ϱϮй ϯϴ͕ϯϯϰ͕ϬϱϮ ϴϰ͘ϱϮй
^ĂŵĂ�sĂƐĂŶƚŚĂ�^Ăŝ ϯ͕ϴϬϮ͕ϱϬϬ ϴ͘ϯϴй ϯ͕ϳϵϮ͕ϱϬϬ ϴ͘ϯϲй



�WƌŽzƵŐĂ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ

�ϭϲϬϵ͕�>ŽĚŚĂ�^ƵƉƌĞŵƵƐ͕�^ĂŬŝ�sŝŚĂƌ�ZŽĂĚ͕�KƉƉ͘�DdE>�ŽĸĐĞ͕�WŽǁĂŝ͕�DƵŵďĂŝͲϰϬϬϬϳϮ

EŽƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ
;�ŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�,ƵŶĚƌĞĚƐͿ

ϯ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŚĞůĚ�ďǇ�WƌŽŵŽƚĞƌƐ

EĂŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�WƌŽŵŽƚĞƌ �й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ
�EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ �й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ й�ŽĨ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐ

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ

WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ

EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ZĞĚĞĞŵĂďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ

EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ

ϰ͘�ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͗

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ
EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ

ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ

ϱ͘�ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��Ϭ͘Ϯй�EŽŶ��ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ��ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͗

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ
��Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ
��Ɛ�Ăƚ

DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ
�EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ

ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ

й��ŚĂŶŐĞ

��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

^ĂŵĂ�sŝũĂǇĂ�<ƵŵĂƌ�ZĞĚĚǇ ϯϴ͕ϯϯϰ͕ϬϱϮ ϴϰ͘ϱϮй ϯϴ͕ϯϯϰ͕ϬϱϮ ϴϰ͘ϱϮй Ͳമമ
^ĂŵĂ�sĂƐĂŶƚŚĂ�^Ăŝ ϯ͕ϴϬϮ͕ϱϬϬ ϴ͘ϯϴй ϯ͕ϳϵϮ͕ϱϬϬ ϴ͘ϯϲй Ϭ͘Ϯϲй
'ĂŶƚĂ�<ŽƚĞƐǁĂƌĂŵŵĂ ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭ͘ϭϬй ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϭ͘ϭϬй Ͳമമ

^ĂŵĂ�sĂƐĂŶƚŚĂ�^Ăŝ ϮϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ Ϭ͘Ϯϰй ϮϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ Ϭ͘Ϯϰй Ͳമമ

^ĂŵĂ�sĂƐĂŶƚŚĂ�^Ăŝ Ϯϲϵ͕ϬϬϬ Ϭ͘Ϯϴй ϮϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ Ϭ͘Ϯϲй ϳ͘ϲϬй

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ
�ĚĚ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�/ƐƐƵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ ϰϱ͕ϯϱϱ͕ϬϮϳ ϰϱϯ͕ϱϱϬ͘Ϯϳ
>ĞƐƐ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ďŽƵŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ
�ĚĚ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�/ƐƐƵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϲ͕ϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ ϲϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ
>ĞƐƐ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ďŽƵŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ



�WƌŽzƵŐĂ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ

�ϭϲϬϵ͕�>ŽĚŚĂ�^ƵƉƌĞŵƵƐ͕�^ĂŬŝ�sŝŚĂƌ�ZŽĂĚ͕�KƉƉ͘�DdE>�ŽĸĐĞ͕�WŽǁĂŝ͕�DƵŵďĂŝͲϰϬϬϬϳϮ

EŽƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ

;�ŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�,ƵŶĚƌĞĚƐͿ

ϲ͘�ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��Ϭ͘ϬϮй�EŽŶ��ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ZĞĚĞĞŵĂďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ͗

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ ��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

�EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ

ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ

ϳ͘�ZĞĐŽŶĐŝůŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��Ϭ͘ϬϮй��EŽŶ��ƵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͗

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ ��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

��Ɛ�Ăƚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

�EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ EŽ͘�ŽĨ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ ��ŵŽƵŶƚ

ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ

ϴ͘�dŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ĂŶǇ�ďŽŶƵƐ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĮǀĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘

ϵ͘�EŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůůŽƩĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĮǀĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ

ϭϬ͘�EŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ďŽƵŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĮǀĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ

ϭϭ͘�dĞƌŵ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϮ

dĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�Ϭ͘Ϯй�E�K�W^�ĂƐ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϮ͗

dĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�Ϭ͘ϬϮй�E�K�W^�ĂƐ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϮ͗

dĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�Ϭ͘ϬϮй�E�ZW^�ĂƐ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϮ

dĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�Ϭ͘ϬϮй�E�ZW^�ĂƐ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϮ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ
�ĚĚ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�/ƐƐƵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϯ͕Ϯϳϯ͕ϬϬϬ ϯϮϳ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ
>ĞƐƐ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ďŽƵŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ
�ĚĚ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�/ƐƐƵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϴϲ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϬϬϬ ϴ͕ϲϱϮ͕ϳϬϬ͘ϬϬ
>ĞƐƐ͗�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ďŽƵŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ Ͳമമ

^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ

dŚĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ĚŝǀŝĚĞŶĚ�ŝƐ�EŽŶ
�ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘�ŝĨ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ͕�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝƐ�ϭ͗ϯ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ŽŶĞ�E�K�W^͕�ϯ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚͿ͘�/Ĩ�ƌĞĚĞĞŵĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ
ƌĞĚĞŵƉƟŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ZƐ�ϱϬϬͬͲ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�DĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϭϯ͘ϭϭ͘ϮϬϮϱ͘

,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕ �ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E�K�W^�ĂƌĞ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ��ŽŵƉƵůƐŽƌǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�;E��W^Ϳ�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉƌŽǀĂů
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŽŶ�ϮϬ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϮ͘��Ɛ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E��W^͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝƐ�ϭ͗ϴ͘ϯ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ŽŶĞ���W^͕�ϴ͘ϯ��ƋƵŝƚǇ
^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŽŶĞ�Ăƚ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϯ͘

dŚĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�KƉƟŽŶĂůůǇ��ŽŶǀĞƌƟďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ĚŝǀŝĚĞŶĚ�ŝƐ�EŽŶ
�ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘�ŝĨ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ��ŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�;ĂͿ�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ZƐ�ϲϬͬͲ͕�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ϭ͗ϭ
ƌĂƟŽ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ŽŶĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞĨƵŶĚĞĚ�Žƌ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ
ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂůůŽƩĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐƌĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͕�Žƌ�;ďͿ�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ZƐ͘�ϲϬͬͲ�ƚŚĞŶ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚĞĐŝĚĞĚ�ĂƐ
ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽďƚĂŝŶĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĚĞŵƉƟŽŶ͘/Ĩ�ƌĞĚĞĞŵĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĚĞŵƉƟŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ZƐ�ϲϬͬͲ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞ͘��dŚĞ�DĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĚĂƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ
ϯϬ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϮ͕�Ϯϭ͘Ϭϵ͘ϮϬϮϮ͕�ϭϱ͘ϭϬ͘ϮϬϮϮ͕�Ϭϳ͘ϭϮ͘ϮϬϮϮ͕�ϭϭ͘Ϭϭ͘ϮϬϮϯ͕�ϭϱ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϮϯ͕�ϬϮ͘Ϭϳ͘ϮϬϮϯ͕�ϮϮ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϯ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ĂůůŽƩĞĚ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϭϴ͕
ϮϮ͘Ϭϵ͘ϮϬϭϴ͕�ϭϲ͘ϭϬ͘ϮϬϭϴ͕�Ϭϴ͘ϭϮ͘ϮϬϭϴ͕�ϭϮ͘Ϭϭ͘ϮϬϭϵ͕�ϭϲ͘ϬϮ͘ϮϬϭϵ͕�Ϭϯ͘Ϭϳ͘ϮϬϭϵ͕�Ϯϯ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϭϵ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞůǇ͘

,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕ �ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E�K�W^�ĂƌĞ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�E��W^�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŽŶ�ϮϬ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϮ͘��Ɛ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ
ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E��W^͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝƐ�ϭ͗ϭ͘ϱ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ŽŶĞ���W^͕�ϭ͘ϱ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŽŶĞ
Ăƚ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϯ͘

dŚĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ZĞĚĞĞŵĂďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ĚŝǀŝĚĞŶĚ�ŝƐ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶ
ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞĚĞŵƉƟŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ZƐ�ϮϬϬͬͲ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�DĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϯϬ͘Ϭϭ͘ϮϬϮϱ͘

,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕ �ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E�ZW^�ĂƌĞ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�E��W^�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŽŶ�ϮϬ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϮ͘��Ɛ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ
ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E��W^͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝƐ�ϭ͗ϭϬ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ŽŶĞ���W^͕�ϭϬ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŽŶĞ
Ăƚ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϯ͘

dŚĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ZĞĚĞĞŵĂďůĞ�WƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ĚŝǀŝĚĞŶĚ�ŝƐ�EŽŶ��ƵŵŵƵůĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶ
ŶĂƚƵƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞĚĞŵƉƟŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ZƐ�ϮϭͬͲ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�DĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϭϳ͘ϭϭ͘ϮϬϮϲ͘

,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕ �ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E�ZW^�ĂƌĞ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�E��W^�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ŽŶ�ϮϬ͘Ϭϴ͘ϮϬϮϮ͘��Ɛ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ
ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�E��W^͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝƐ�ϭ͗ϭϬ�;ŝ͘Ğ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ŽŶĞ���W^͕�ϭϬ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ŚĂƌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŽŶĞ
Ăƚ�ĂŶǇƟŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϯϭ͘Ϭϯ͘ϮϬϮϯ͘
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 ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited 

1609, Lodha Supremus, Saki Vihar Road, Opp. MTNL office, Powai, Mumbai-400072

Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

3  Long - term borrowings 

 Note: 

a. 

Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans

Loan Type Frequency of Payment Rate Type Monthly EMI

 

3.1. The Company had taken the Commercial Loan by keeping the following Office Premises as Security for the Loan

a.  Office Premises Located in Mumbai with address 1609, Lodha Supremus, SakiVihar Road, Opp. MTNL office, Powai, Mumbai-400072

b. Office Premises located in Hyderabad with address Plot No 30, Brigade Towers, East Wing, Ground Floor, Nanankramguda, Financial District, Gachibowli, Hyderabad-500032

3.2. The Company had taken the Vehicle loans by keeping folllowing Vehicles as Security for the Loans
The Company has purchased 2 Alto's & 2 Omni's motor Vehicles for the office purpose and the same are kept as security for taking the loans as on 31.03.2021

3.3. 

Top Up Loan (Commercial loan) Monthly Floating Interest Rate 221390

Loan Against Property (commercial loan) Monthly Floating Interest Rate 223840

Loan Against Property (commercial loan) Monthly Floating Interest Rate 159525

Vehicle Loan  Monthly  Fixed Interest Rate 9,292

 3.4. There has been no default in repayment of any of the loans or interest thereon as at the end of the year.

b. As on 31.03.2022, only one loan which is taken by keeping 1 Omni Motor Vehicle is security is continuing. All the other loans repayment is completed
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D��0�/�.IEIQp<DYI��9�ÃÁ�ÃÂ ÊÁ�ÈÉÄ�ÂÃ ÂÆ�ÈÁÁ�ÁÅ
E��0�/�.IEIQp<DYI��9�ÂÊ�ÃÁ ÂÆ�ÈÁÁ�ÁÅ �� �

¥QQQ¦ �/0�.IEIQp<DYI ÄÁÉ�ÉÁÈ�ÂÇ ÆÂÄ�ÃÊÊ�ÂÃ
¥Qp¦ $jPIgh�.IEIQp<DYIh Ä�ÂÆÉ�ÂÂ ÉÁ�ÄÉÈ�ÃÃ
¥p¦ +gId<QG��rdI[hIh È�ÅÄÉ�ÇÃ Ç�ÈÁÅ�ÊÂ

¥pQ¦ !�0�
gIGQj��[jQjYIZI[j ÃÊ�ÈÄÆ�ÉÈ �� �

¥pQQ¦ $jPIg�
kggI[j��hhIjh ÃÆÁ�ÁÁ È�ÃÊÇ�ÂÊ



�WƌŽzƵŐĂ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�

�ϭϲϬϵ͕�>ŽĚŚĂ�^ƵƉƌĞŵƵƐ͕�^ĂŬŝ�sŝŚĂƌ�ZŽĂĚ͕�KƉƉ͘�DdE>�ŽĸĐĞ͕�WŽǁĂŝ͕�DƵŵďĂŝͲϰϬϬϬϳϮ

�EŽƚĞƐ�&ŽƌŵŝŶŐ�WĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�

�;�ŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�,ƵŶĚƌĞĚƐͿ�

Ϯϭ ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ�&ƌŽŵ�KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ �&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ

dŽƚĂů Ϯ͕ϴϱϵ͕Ϯϴϯ͘Ϯϴ ϭ͕Ϭϳϲ͕ϬϮϴ͘ϵϭ

ϮϮ KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ �&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ
;ŝǀͿ

;ǀͿ
dŽƚĂů ϯϰϯ͕ϴϯϰ͘ϳϴ ϭϵϵ͕ϮϮϯ͘ϯϯ

Ϯϯ �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ��ĞŶĞĮƚƐ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞ

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ
�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ

;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ

;ŝǀͿ
;ǀͿ

dŽƚĂů ϯϴϵ͕ϲϴϮ͘ϮϮ ϯϯϳ͕ϵϲϵ͘Ϯϱ

Ϯϰ &ŝŶĂŶĐĞ��ŽƐƚ

WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ �&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ

dŽƚĂů ϰϱ͕ϭϭϱ͘ϰϱ ϰϳ͕ϵϳϯ͘ϳϳ

^ĂůĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ Ϯ͕ϱϲϮ͕ϭϰϬ͘Ϭϱ ϭ͕Ϭϱϯ͕ϳϯϬ͘Ϯϱ
^ĂůĞ�ŽĨ�'ŽŽĚƐ ϳϱ͕Ϯϭϰ͘ϯϴ ϭϬ͕ϳϮϬ͘ϯϱ
�ǆƉŽƌƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ ϮϮϭ͕ϵϮϴ͘ϴϱ ϭϭ͕ϱϳϴ͘ϯϭ

/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ Ϯϴϯ͕ϰϲϮ͘Ϯϱ ϭϳϵ͕Ϯϴϭ͘ϴϰ
ZĞŶƚ�Θ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ZĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ ϮϮ͕ϴϯϬ͘ϲϰ ϭϴ͕ϱϴϯ͘ϳϲ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�dĂǆ�ZĞĨƵŶĚ Ͳമമ ϰϯϴ͘ϲϵ
KƚŚĞƌ�ŶŽŶͲŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ ϵ͕ϴϮϭ͘ϭϳ ϵϭϵ͘Ϭϰ
&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ��ǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŐĂŝŶ�ŽŶ
�ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƟŽŶ Ϯϳ͕ϳϮϬ͘ϳϮ Ͳ

^ĂůĂƌŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĐĞŶƟǀĞƐ�KƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ ϯϮϬ͕ϲϬϯ͘Ϯϰ ϮϳϮ͕ϰϭϯ͘ϯϭ
�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ZĞŵƵŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ĞǆĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƚŽ
W& ϰϯ͕ϳϰϰ͘ϲϯ ϰϳ͕ϱϴϬ͘ϬϬ
�ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�Ͳ
Ă͘�WƌŽǀŝĚĞŶƚ�ĨƵŶĚ�Θ�KƚŚĞƌ�ĨƵŶĚƐ ϴ͕ϳϵϭ͘ϳϲ ϴ͕ϴϯϭ͘ϰϮ
^ƚĂī�ǁĞůĨĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ϭϮ͕ϮϮϲ͘Ϭϵ ϭ͕Ϯϱϴ͘ϬϮ
WŽƐƚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ
Ă͘�'ƌĂƚƵŝƚǇ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞ ϳ͕ϱϬϵ͘ϯϯ ϳ͕ϯϭϮ͘ϱϮ
ď͘�>ĞĂǀĞ��ŶĐĂƐŚŵĞŶƚ ;ϯ͕ϭϵϮ͘ϴϯͿ ϱϳϯ͘ϵϴ

/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ ϰϯ͕ϰϳϬ͘ϵϱ ϰϳ͕ϵϮϯ͘Ϭϳ
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŽŶ�d�^ ϭ͕ϲϰϰ͘ϱϬ ϱϬ͘ϳϬ



�WƌŽzƵŐĂ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞĚ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�

�ϭϲϬϵ͕�>ŽĚŚĂ�^ƵƉƌĞŵƵƐ͕�^ĂŬŝ�sŝŚĂƌ�ZŽĂĚ͕�KƉƉ͘�DdE>�ŽĸĐĞ͕�WŽǁĂŝ͕�DƵŵďĂŝͲϰϬϬϬϳϮ

�EŽƚĞƐ�&ŽƌŵŝŶŐ�WĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�

�;�ŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�,ƵŶĚƌĞĚƐͿ�

Ϯϱ KƚŚĞƌ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ

^͘�EŽ WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ
�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ
;ŝǀͿ
;ǀͿ
;ǀŝͿ
;ǀŝŝͿ
;ǀŝŝŝͿ
;ŝǆͿ
;ǆͿ

;ǆŝͿ
;ǆŝŝͿ
;ǆŝŝŝͿ
;ǆŝŝŝͿ
;ǆŝǀͿ
;ǆǀͿ
;ǆǀŝͿ

;ǆǀŝŝͿ
;ǆǀŝŝŝͿ
;ǆŝǆͿ
;ǆǆͿ
;ǆǆŝͿ

;ǆǆŝŝͿ
;ǆǆŝŝŝͿ

;ǆǆŝǀͿ

;ǆǆǀͿ

;ǆǆǀŝͿ
;ǆǆǀŝŝͿ

dŽƚĂů ϯ͕ϳϳϯ͕ϳϰϴ͘ϯϵ ϲϬϲ͕ϵϲϱ͘ϰϱ

Ϯϲ �ŽŶƟŶŐĞŶƚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ

^͘�EŽ WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ

Ϯϳ ^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌƐ�ZĞŵƵŶĂƌĂƟŽŶ

^͘�EŽ WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ �&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ

dŽƚĂů ϭϱϭϱϮ͘Ϭϵ ϭϰϭϴϳ͘Ϭϭ

Ϯϴ dĂǆ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞ

^͘�EŽ WĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌƐ

;ŝͿ
;ŝŝͿ
;ŝŝŝͿ

dŽƚĂů ;ϯϯ͕ϰϱϰ͘ϰϮͿ Ϯϯϵ͘ϲϴ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϮ

�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�zĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ
DĂƌĐŚ�ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϮϭ

WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů��ŚĂƌŐĞƐ ϭ͕ϰϬϬ͕Ϯϲϯ͘Ϭϳ ϮϬϵ͕ϭϱϭ͘ϯϭ
DĂƌŬĞƟŶŐ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ϭϯϯ͕ϰϮϱ͘ϵϴ ϭϭϱ͕ϴϱϬ͘Ϯϴ
^ƵďƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ ϰϬ͕ϲϯϵ͘ϱϬ Ϯϲ͕ϭϰϳ͘ϭϰ
�ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ Ϯϵ͕ϰϰϯ͘ϵϵ ϯ͕ϴϭϱ͘ϰϭ
ZĞŶƚ Ϯϳ͕ϱϯϮ͘ϬϬ ϴϯ͕ϲϭϳ͘ϱϰ
tŝƚŚŚŽůĚŝŶŐ�dĂǆĞƐ�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī ϭϵ͕ϮϱϬ͘ϴϳ ϰϯϱ͘Ϭϱ
�ƵĚŝƚ�&ĞĞƐ ϭϰ͕ϭϱϮ͘Ϭϵ ϭϰ͕ϱϴϳ͘Ϭϭ
ZĂƚĞƐ�Θ�dĂǆĞƐ ϭϯ͕Ϭϵϲ͘ϭϬ ϭϮ͕Ϭϰϴ͘ϵϬ
>ŽƐƐ�ŽŶ�^ĂůĞ�ŽĨ��ƐƐĞƚ ϴ͕ϴϯϲ͘ϱϬ ϲϰϮ͘ϳϲ
ZĞƉĂŝƌƐ�Θ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ
;ŝͿ�ZĞƉŝĂƌƐ�Θ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĞ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ ϰ͕ϵϱϳ͘Ϭϯ ϭϳ͕ϱϭϳ͘ϵϱ
;ŝŝͿ�ZĞƉŝĂƌƐ�Θ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĞ�KƚŚĞƌƐ ϯ͕ϱϵϬ͘ϱϲ ϱϱϲ͘ϴϭ
dƌĂǀĞůůŝŶŐ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ϲ͕ϱϬϲ͘ϯϳ ϭ͕ϭϭϵ͘ϭϲ
�ĂĚĚĞďƚƐ�;�ĞďƚŽƌƐ�Θ�EŽŶ��ĞďƚŽƌƐͿ ϲ͕Ϯϱϯ͘ϱϲ Ͳമമ
WƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌǇ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�tƌŝƩĞŶ�Kī ϲ͕ϭϬϯ͘Ϭϱ ϲ͕ϭϬϯ͘Ϭϱ
�ĂŶŬ�ĂŶĚ�KƚŚĞƌ��ŚĂƌŐĞƐ ϱ͕ϵϱϰ͘ϭϱ ϰ͕ϴϱϳ͘Ϭϰ
WŽǁĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�&ƵĞů��ŚĂƌŐĞƐ ϰ͕ϱϲϱ͘ϯϴ ϲ͕ϵϮϲ͘ϱϯ
dĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ ϰ͕ϭϱϰ͘ϳϭ Ϯ͕ϱϮϳ͘ϯϬ
&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ��ǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�>ŽƐƐ ϯ͕Ϯϭϭ͘ϰϯ ϭ͕ϭϮϭ͘ϰϵ

�ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌ�&ĞĞƐ ϭ͕ϭϮϴ͘ϯϱ ϲ͕ϭϲϯ͘ϵϬ
DŝƐĐ͘��ǆƉĞŶƐĞ ϯϴϭ͘ϴϲ ϲϮϭ͘ϴϲ
/ŶǀĞŶƚŽƌǇ�tƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī�Θ��ĂŵĂŐĞ ϯϯϬ͘ϴϮ ϱ͕ϲϭϰ͘Ϯϰ
ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ĂŶĚ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ϭϮϮ͘ϳϯ Ͳ
WƌŝŶƟŶŐ�Θ�^ƚĂƟŽŶĞƌǇ ϴϴ͘ϭϭ Ͳ

DŽƵůĚ�tƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī ϳϯ͘ϯϱ ϵϲϴ͘ϰϭ
Ͳമമ Ϯ͕ϭϮϰ͘ϬϬ

&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ��ǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽŶ
�ŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƟŽŶ Ͳമമ ϰϳ͕ϴϭϲ͘ϴϬ

^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚ�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī Ͳമമ ϯ͕ϵϬϬ͘ϬϬ

�ƐƐĞƚƐ�tƌŝƩĞŶ�Žī Ͳമമ ϯϮ͕ϳϯϭ͘ϱϭ

�ůůŽǁĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ��ŽƵďƞƵů�ĚĞďƚƐ Ϯ͕Ϭϯϵ͕ϲϴϲ͘ϴϯ Ͳമമ

�hŶĞǆƉŝƌĞĚ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ��ƌĞĚŝƚ �Eŝů� �Eŝů�
hŶĞǆƉŝƌĞĚ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞƐ �Eŝů� �Eŝů�

^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ƵĚŝƚ�ĨĞĞ ϭϰϭϱϮ͘Ϭϵ ϭϯ͕ϰϯϳ͘Ϭϭ
dĂǆ��ƵĚƚ�ĨĞĞƐ ϭ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ ϱϬϬ͘ϬϬ
KƚŚĞƌ��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ Ͳമമ ϮϱϬ͘ϬϬ

�ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�dĂǆ Ϯϵ͕ϳϳϰ͘ϯϯ Ͳ
�ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�dĂǆ ;ϯϯ͕ϰϵϮ͘ϴϴͿ Ϯϯϵ͘ϲϴ
D�d��ƌĞĚŝƚ�ĞŶƟƚůĞŵĞŵŶƚ ;Ϯϵ͕ϳϯϱ͘ϴϳͿ Ͳ

^ƟƉĞŶĚƐ
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 Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial Statements

29 Additional information on the entities included in the consolidated financial statements  (Amount in Hundreds) 
Net Assets i.e., total assets minus total liabilities Share in profit or loss

As % of Consolidated net
assets

Amount As % of Consolidated profit
or loss

Amount of
Profit/(Loss)

Parent Subsidiaries

Indian

Foreign

30 Other statutory information

For N R G & Co  For on Behalf of the Board of Directors 
 ProYuga Advanced Technologies Limited 

Sd/-
CA P Rama Krishna

Sd/-
Parimi S Ganesh Sai Sasank

Sd/-
Vasantha Sai Sama

Sd/-
Karumuru Gowtham
Reddy

Sd/-
Shubhi Singhal

Name of the Entity

XR Technologies Limited 0.11 4,383.45 (0.11) 1,545.20

Mayuukha Pte Ltd and it's
step down Subsidiaries and
Associates 5.97 233,623.61 146.58 (2,076,658.00)

(i)
The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding
any Benami property.

(ii) The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lenders.
(iii) During the year, the Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments.
(iv) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v)
The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi)
The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii)

The holding Company have not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(viii)
Based on the information available with the Group, the Group do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

31 The  Consolidated financials statements are presented in Indian rupees in Hundreds.

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 013417S)

Partner 
Membership No. 512328

CEO Whole Time Director
DIN: 07126477

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03-Dec-2022 CFO Company Secretary

M No: A66004


